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I. INTRODUCTION

1. This Complaint is filed by Reynolds Presto Products Inc. (“Presto” or

“Complainant”), pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. §

1337 (“Section 337”), against the proposed Respondents Inteplast Group, Ltd. (“Inteplast”) and

Minigrip, LLC (“Minigrip”) (collectively, the “Proposed Respondents”). Presto respectfully

requests that the United States International Trade Commission (the “Commission”) institute an

investigation relating to the unlawful sale for importation into the United States, importation into

the United States, and/or the sale within the United States after importation of certain resealable

packages with slider devices.

_2. The Proposed Respondents have engaged in unfair acts in violation of Section

337(a)(l)(A) through and in connection with the unlicensed importation into the United States,

sale for importation, and/or sale within the United States after importation of the Proposed

Respondent’s resealable packages with slider devices, that infringe one or more of the following

U.S. patents owned by Presto (collectively, “the Asserted Patents”):

0 6,427,421 (“the ’42l patent”) (Exhibit N0. 1).

I 6,524,002 (“the ’0O2patent”) (Exhibit No. 3).

0 7,311,443 (“the ’443 patent”) (Exhibit No. 5).

3. The Proposed Respondents have violated and continue to violate Section 337 to

the detriment of the domestic industry of Presto that exists or is in the process of being

established in the United States relating to the Alsserted Patents. '

4. To remedy the Proposed Respondents’ continuing and unlawful violation of

Section 337, Presto hereby states pursuant to Commission Rule 210.l2(a)(] 1) that it seeks, as

permanent relief, a general exclusion order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337 (d), barring all



infringing resealable packages with slider devices from entry into the United States. Presto also

seeks, alternatively, a limited exclusion order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § l337(d), barring from

entry into the United States all infringing resealable packages with slider devices sold for

importation, imported, or sold within the United States afler importation by the Proposed

Respondents. Presto also seeks cease and desist orders, pursuant to I9 U.S.C. § 1337(1),

prohibiting the Proposed Respondents from engaging in the unlawful sale for importation into

the United States, importation into the United States, and/or the sale within the United States

afler importation of infringing resealable packages with slider devices that infringe one or more

claims the Asserted Patents. Further, Presto requests that the Commission impose a bond upon

Proposed Respondents’ importation of infringing resealable packages with slider devices during

the 60-day Presidential review period, pursuant to l9 U.S.C. § l337(j), to prevent further injury

to the domestic industry relating to the Asserted Patents.

A. Complainants

5. Reynolds Presto Products Inc. is a corporation incorporated under the laws of

Delaware, having its principal place of business at 670 N. Perkins Street, Appleton, WI 54912.

6. Presto’s history dates back to 1961 when it was founded as a manufacturer of

Private Label Bags and Wrap. Its initial clients were Sears, A&P, and Shop Rite. Since then,

Presto has evolved significantly and rapidly as a U.S. company.

7. From I978 through 1985, Presto was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Coca-Cola

Company. In 1984 Presto received the Governor’s New Product Award for Geoblock® and

Geoweb® ~ soil stabilization for the construction industry. From 1988-2000, Presto operated as

a wholly owned subsidiary of Reynolds Metals Company. In May of 2000, Presto became a

subsidiary of Alcoa.Consumer Products, which became the corporate parent of Reynolds Metals
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Company at that time. In 2008, Presto was purchased by the Rank Group and has been a

privately held company of the Rank Group since.

8. Presto is organized into four distinct business units. The Consumer Business Unit

which leads Presto’s operations in its widely known and respected role as a manufacturer of

private label products including plastic bags, wrap, containers, and related consumer products.

The FRESH-LOCK® Zipper Business Unit (which includes the Slide-Rite® business unit)

manages Presto’s market leading production of resealable packages using Presto’s innovative

reclosable zipper technology. Presto’s zipper technology adds immeasurable convenience to a

wide range of branded and private label packaging bags, including for snacks, pet food, and

potting soil. The third unit, the Geosystems® Business Unit leads Presto’s quality “green”

initiative, including the providing of particularly innovative “green” solutions to challenging soil

stabilization problems, site access, and stonnwater management needs. Lastly, the Specialty

Films Business Unit manages Presto’s offerings of innovative and useful stretch-film based

packaging products. _

9. Part of Presto’s impressive product portfolio, is Presto’s consumer line of slider

bags for opening and closing the tops of consumer bags. Presto’s consumer slider bags are

designed for exceptional ease of consumer use. Presto’s consumer unit slider bags have high

retention values and are perfect for consumers’ storage needs at home. Presto’s industry leading

sliders provide easy bag opening and closing capabilities for consumers across the United States.

10. Presto’s slider technology was developed by a combination of its Consumer

Business Unit and the Slide-Rite® unit. Presto’s slider products are easily attachable to any

number of customer flexible bag product offerings. Indeed, Presto provides high quality
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manufacturing equipment especially adopted to easily add Presto sliders to packages thereby

streamlining the manufacturing process.

ll. Presto has enjoyed tremendous success based on its innovative and particularly

consumer-friendly slider tops. Presto’s initial and continued success is based entirely on

extensive domestic research and development efforts.

B. Proposed Respondents .

12. On information and belief, Respondent lnteplast Group, Ltd. is a late-market

entrant, U.S. supplier of resealable packages with slider devices incorporated under the laws of

Texas with its principal place of business at 9 Peach Tree Hill Road Livingston, NJ 07039. See

Exhibit Nos. 10 and 11. As detailed below, lnteplast Group is the supplier and/or manufacturer

of imported and infringing resealable packages.

_ l3. On information and belief, Respondent Minigrip, LLC is a late-market entrant,

U.S. supplier of resealable packages with slider devices incorporated under the laws of Delaware

with its principal place of business at 161 Kimball Bridge Road, Alpharetta, GA 30009. See

Exhibit Nos. 12 and 13. As detailed below, Minigrip is the supplier and/or manufacturer of

imported and infringing resealable packages.

l4. On information and belief, Minigrip is a subsidiary of lnteplast.

II. . TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS-AT-ISSUE

A. Presto’s Products

15. As a pioneer in the resealable bag market, Presto is an industry leader for

resealable packages with slider devices. For example, numerous Private Label brands sell

resealable bags manufactured using and incorporating Presto’s innovative sliding devices.

l6. Private Label brands are bags that distributors stamp with their own Label, but

were manufactured by a third party. For example, Presto manufactures resealable bags for the
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grocer Kroger. Kroger then packages the resealable bags manufactured by Presto under the

Private Label brand name Home Sense. The Home Sense resealable bags, pictured below, are

manufactured by Presto:

Home Sense Private Label Slider Bags

l7. These Home Sense slider bags are manufactured using Presto’s proprietary

processes and equipment that practices one or more of the Asserted Patents. Likewise, these

Private Label bags themselves and their slider devices are Presto’s proprietary technology and

practice one or more of the Asserted Patents, as explained below.

B. Boulder Resealable Packages Manufactured and/or Imported by Inteplast
and/or Minigrip

18. On information and belief, lnteplast and Minigrip manufacture and import

resealable packages that are sold in the United States having the Private Label Brand Name

Boulder. These resealable packages are pictured below.
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Boulder Private Label Resealable Packages with Slider Devices

19. As shown, these slider bags are strikingly similar to those manufactured and

patented by Presto. As shown, the Boulder bags have a red sliding device across the top of the

consumer bag that allows for opening and closing of the bag. As explained in further detail

below, these packages are manufactured using Prest0’s proprietary manufacturing processes and

the packages, along with their sliding devices, infringe upon Presto’s patented apparatuses.
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C. Minigrip Resealable Packages Manufactured and/or Imported by Inteplast
and/or Minigrip

20. Minigrip manufactures and sells the below pictured Minigrip resealable packages

with Slider devices.

.9»

Minigrip Resealable Packages with Slider Devices

2l. As shown, these slider bags are strikingly similar to those first manufactured and

patented by Presto. As shown, the bags have a blue sliding device across the top of the consumer

bag that allows for opening and closing of the bag. As explained in further detail below, these

resealable packages with slider devices are manufactured using Presto’s proprietary

manufacturing processes and the packages, along with their sliding devices, infringe upon

Presto’s patented apparatuses.

III. THE ASSERTED PATENTS

22. The Asserted Patents teach novel and nonobvious technology related to resealable

packages with slider devices and-methods for manufacturing such packages. As explained

below, Presto owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in each of the Asserted

Patents. Also, explained below, Presto’s slider bags practice the Asserted Patents and are

manufactured by processes claimed in one or more of the Asserted Patents. Presto’s relevant

_7_



domestic operations include significant investment in plant and equipment, significant

employment of labor or capital, and substantial investment in engineering, research and

development. '

A. The Asserted Patents and Non-Technical Description‘

(1) The ’42l Patent

23. The ’42l patent is entitled “Method of Manufacturing Reclosable Packages,” and

names Kirk E. Belmont and Ian J. Barclay as inventors. The ’42l patent was filed on July 28,

2000, claiming priority as a ‘divisionalto application no. 09/307,843, which was filed on May 10,

1999 and is now U.S. Patent No. 6,327,754. The ’42l patent has thirty-seven claims —three

independent and thirty-four dependent. A certified copy of the ’42l patent is attached to the

Complaint as Exhibit No. 1. A copy of the ’42l patent ex parte reexamination certificate is

attached to the Complaint as Exhibit N0. 7.

24. Presto owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in the ’42l patent. A

certified copy of the assignment is attached as Exhibit N0. 2.

25. Together with this Complaint, Presto has filed a copy and three (3) additional

copies of the prosecution history of the ’42l patent as Appendix No. 1. Presto has also filed

four (4) copies of each patent and technical reference identified in the prosecution history of the

application leading to the issuance of the ’42l Patent as Appendix No. 2.

26. Likewise, Presto has filed a copy and three (3) additional copies of the ex parte

reexamination prosecution history of the ’42l Patent as Appendix N0. 3. Presto has also filed

four (4) copies of each patent and technical reference identified in the ex parte reexamination

prosecution history of the ’42l Patent as Appendix N0. 4.

‘This Complaint and the included non-technical descriptions are not intended to and do not
construe either the specification or the claims of the Asserted Patents.
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27. The ’42l patent teaches a manufacturing process for resealable bags having slider

devices along their top edge for opening and closing each bag. The top of each bag has a zipper

profile whereby the walls can be engaged with each other or disengaged. The zipper profile

walls of the bag are engaged with each other when the mountable slider is in a closed position

and disengaged from each other when the slider is in an open position. The manufacturing

method also includes providing side seals on the sides of each bag which define the length of the

zipper profile and can be cut to separate adjacent bags during the manufacturing process.

(2) The ’002 Patent

28. The ’002 patent is entitled “Slider Device, Packages, and Methods,” and names

Mladomir Tomic as inventor. The ’002 patent was filed on July 31, 2002, claiming priority to

provisional application no. 60/222,132, which was filed on July 31, 2000. The ’002 patent has

twenty-seven claims —five independent and twenty-two dependent. A certified copy of the ’002

patent is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit No. 3.

29. Presto owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in the ’002 patent. A

certified copy of the assignment is attached as Exhibit N0. 4.

30. Together with this Complaint, Presto has filed a copy and three (3) additional

copies of the prosecution history of the ’002 patent as Appendix No. 5. Presto has also filed

four (4) copies of each patent and technical reference identified in the prosecution history of the

application leading to the issuance of the ’002 Patent as Appendix No. 6.

3l. The ’002 patent teaches a slider device for use with a resealable package. The

slider includes a first sidewall and a second sidewall. Extending from the first sidewall is a first

hook construction and a second hook construction also extends from the second sidewall of the

slider. There is also included in the slider a spreader that extends from the top wall of the slider.

The slider itself is used for opening and closing a zipper profile along the top edge of a package.

-9



When the slider is in the open position, the zipper profile walls of the package are disengaged

from each other. Conversely, when the slider is in the closed position, the zipper profile walls of

the package are engaged with each other.

(3) The ’443 Patent

32. The ’443 patent is entitled “Resealable Bag Having a Slider Device to an Open

Closure Mechanism,” and names James E. Buchanan as inventor. The ’443 patent was filed on

October ll, 2005, claiming priority as a divisional to application no. 10/165,026, which was

filed on June 7, 2002 and is now U.S. Patent N0. 6,983,573. The ’443 patent has six claims —

one independent and five dependent. A certified copy of the ’443 patent is attached to the

Complaint as Exhibit No. 5.

33. Presto owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in the ’443 patent. A

certified copy of the assignment is attached as Exhibit No. 6.

34. Together with this Complaint, Presto has filed a copy and three (3) additional

copies of the prosecution history of the ’443 patent as Appendix No. 7. Presto has also filed

four (4) copies of each patent and technical reference identified in the prosecution history of the

application leading to the issuance of the ’443 Patent as Appendix No. 8.

35. The ’443 patent teaches a resealable bag. The resealable bag has a zipper profile

along its top edge whereby the Zipper profile walls are engaged with each other when the bag is

closed and are disengaged from each other when the bag is open. The bag utilizes a slider device

for engaging and disengaging the zipper profile walls. The slider device includes a spreader for

separating the zipper profile walls. The spreader has a channel for accepting flanges of the

zipper profile walls.
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(4) Foreign Patents and Applications Corresponding to the Asserted
- Patents

36. A listing of all foreign patents and foreign patent applications corresponding to

the respective Asserted Patents can be found as Exhibit No. 8.

(5) Licensees to the Asserted Patents

37. A confidential listing of any licensees to the Asserted Patents is provided as

Confidential Exhibit N0. 9.

IV. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF THE PROPOSED RESPONDENTS

38. On information and belief, the Proposed Respondents unlawfully sell for

importation, import, and/or sell after importation into the United States resealable packages with

slider devices that infringe the Asserted Patents. Exhibits 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, and» 19 contain

claim charts that detail examples of how the asserted independent claims of the Asserted Patents

read on the Proposed Respondents’ products, based on information discovered through Presto’s

investigation to date. The non-exclusive list of claims that the Proposed Respondents infringe is

as follows:

Boulder Bags I 39 l l

Minigrip Bags l 39 1 1

39. The infringement at issue in this Complaint includes infringement (either literally

or under the doctrine of equivalents) under 35 U.S.C. § 27l(a) and § 271(g).

40. Contemporaneously with the filing of this Complaint, Presto has provided the

Proposed Respondents with a copy of the Complaint and the non-confidential exhibits to the

Complaint. As a result, the Proposed Respondents received notice of the Asserted Patents and

the infringement at issue no later than the filing of this Complaint.
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V. SPECIFIC ACTS OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE

41. On information and belief, Proposed Respondents import and will continue to

import and/or sell after importation within the United States products that infringe the Asserted

Patents in violation of Section 337.

42. Presto has obtained in the United States representative samples of the Proposed

Respondents’ products that infringe the Asserted Patents.

43. On information and belief, certain products bearing the Private Label brand name

Boulder, as identified inlthe claim charts, infringe one or more of the Asserted Patents and are

imported and/or sold afier importation from China within the United States by the Proposed

Respondents who manufacture and supply these bags to Private Label companies—including the

Boulder label which is sold at Aldi. For example, certain Boulder Slider Bags were purchased

from Aldi in the United States, but only claim to have been “packaged” in the United States. On

information and belief those bags were imported from China and provided from the Proposed

Respondents to Aldi. See Physical Exhibit No. 1; See also Exhibit N0. 24.
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44. On information and belief, products bearing the brand name Minigrip, as

identified in the claim charts, infringe one or more of the Asserted Patents and are imported
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and/or sold afier importation within the United States by the Proposed Respondents who

manufacture and supply these bags directly to consumers. For example, Minigrip bags were

purchased and came in a box bearing the label “Made in China.”See Physical Exhibit No. 2.
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VI. INFORIVIATION REGARDING THE DIFFICULTY TO IDENTIFY THE
SOURCE OF INFRINGING RESEALABLE PACKAGES

45. As explained above, Inteplast and Minigrip engage in providing Private Labels

with infringing resealable packages.

46. On information and belief, Aldi is not the only Private Label distributor that uses

Inteplast and Minigrip.

47. Additionally, there are a number of Chinese slider bag exporters that are willing

to import their slider bags into the United States. However, it is exceedingly difficult to identify

the source of any such bag without precise competitive intelligence directly from informers in

China. ~

48. For example, as shown in Exhibit N0. 24, Respondents have seemingly imported

a large quantity of zipper bags having sliders which have originated with a large number of

Chinese manufacturers.
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VII. HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE INFORMATION

49. On information and belief, the articles subject to this Complaint are classifiable

under at least the following headings‘ and subheadings of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule

(“HTS”) of the United States: 3923.21.20.

50. These classifications are intended for illustration only and are not intended to

restrict the scope of this investigation.

VIII. TI-[E DOMESTIC INDUSTRY "

Sl. A domestic industry, as required and defined by 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(2)-(3), exists

by virtue of significant investment in plant and equipment, significant employment of labor or

capital, and substantial investment in engineering, research, and development, all related to the

Asserted Patents.

A. The Economic Prong

52. An industry, as defined in Section 337(a)(3), exists in the United States by virtue

of Presto’s significant and substantial investments directed to Presto’s resealable packages with

slider devices and manufacturing equipment and processes therefore, each of which is protected

by one or more of the Asserted Patents.

53. Presto conducts significant, substantial, and extensive activities in the United

States related to its slider bag domestic industry. These activities include, but are not limited to

significant domestic investment in employees and labor related to the engineering, research, and

development and manufacturing of slider bags. Further included are Presto’s significant

domestic investment in plant and equipment related to Presto’s engineering, research, and

development and manufacturing of slider bags. Additionally, Presto’s domestic investment in

engineering and research and development for slider bags is substantial.

_14



54. Presto has multiple manufacturing facilities in the United States responsible for

manufacturing resealable packages with slider devices that practice the Asserted Patents (as

shown in the attached claim charts related to the technical prong of the domestic industry

requirement). Moreover, Presto has a substantial research and development presence in the

United States related to its packages that practice the Asserted Patents. More infonnation related

to Presto’s domestic expenditures can be found in Confidential Exhibit 20.

B. The Technical Prong

55. Presto practices the Asserted Patents in the United States through at least slider

bags labeled under the Private Label Brand name Home Sense. The Home Sense slider bags are

manufactured using the claimed manufacturing process in the ’42l patent. The Home Sense

slider bags likewise practice the ’_002and ’443 patents.

56. The asserted claims practiced by the Home Sense slider bags are as follows:

hm“ mo Product Asserted ’42l Asserted ’002 Asserted ’443g ° Claims Claims Claims

Home Sense 39 A 1 l

57. A chart applying the claims of the ’42l patent to the Home Sense slider bag

manufacturing process is attached as Exhibit No. 21. .

58. A chart applying the claims of the ’002 patent to the Home Sense slider bags is

attached as Exhibit No. 22.

59. A chart applying the claims of the ’443 patent to the Home Sense slider bags is

attached as Exhibit No. 23.

60. A Home Sense Slider bag is included as Physical Exhibit No. 3.
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IX. RELATED LITIGATION

61.- Presto is not aware of any court or agency actions involving the Asserted Patents

or in any way related to this proposed Investigation.

X. REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE-,Presto respectfully requests that the United States International Trade

Commission:

1. Institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(l) of the Tariff

Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into the violation by Proposed Respondents of

Section 337 arising from the importation into the United States and/or sale within the United

States afier the importation of Proposed Respondents’ products that infringe the Asserted

Patents;

2. Schedule and conduct a hearing pursuant to Section 337(0), for purposes of

receiving evidence and hearing argument conceming whether there has been a violation of

Section 337 and, following the hearing, determine that there has beenia violation of Section 337;

3. Issue a pennanent general exclusion order pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337 (d)

forbidding entry into the United States of products that infringe one or more of the Asserted

Patents;

4. In the event a permanent general exclusion order is not issued, issue a permanent

limited exclusion order pursuant to l9 U.S.C. § 1337 (d) forbidding entry into the United States

of Proposed Respondents’ products that infringeone or more of the Asserted Patents;

5. Issue a permanent cease and desist order, pursuant to l9 U.S.C. § 1337(1),

directing Proposed Respondents to, cease and desist from the importation, sale, offer for sale,

advertising, packaging or solicitation of any sale by Proposed Respondents of products that

infringe the Asserted Patents;
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6. Impose a bond upon Proposed Respondents who continue to import infringing

articles during the 60-day Presidential review period per 19 U.S.C. § l337(j); and

7. Grant all such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law, based

upon the facts complained of herein and as determined by the investigation.
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Dated: Juneii, 2015

By:
GREEN G T AURI , P
Scott B n in
Rich Pettus
Zahra Smith
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New York, NY 10166
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Email: smithz@gtlaw.c0m

Mark Davis
Steve Shahida
P.J. McCarthy
2101 L Street, NW
Washington, DC 20037
Tel: (202) 331-3100
Email: davisma@gtlaw.c0m
Email: mccarthyp@gtlaw.c0m
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